
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, February 24, 2015                                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - None 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary and February 10, 2015 

Special & Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-3. Approve Payment of Sales Tax Assessment on Park Project (Hendrickson) 
C-4. Approve Contract with SBS Legal Services for City Attorney Services (Scott) 
C-5. Execute Task to Design Stormwater Conveyance Improvement Project (Parrish) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  February 12 meeting 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  February 18 meeting 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  February 12 meeting 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  February 5 meeting; February 19 meeting canceled 
• Future Meetings: Economic Development Council:  Next meeting February 26 

 
NEW BUSINESS - None 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  February 24, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 31, 2015 ANNUAL STRATEGIC 

PLANNING SUMMIT SUMMARY AND FEBRUARY 10, 2015 CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic 
Planning Summit Summary and the February 10, 2015 City 
Council Special & Regular Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 1 

CITY OF COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL  
Annual Strategic Planning Summit 
 
Saturday, 31 January 2015    8:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.  
Maplewood Golf Club             4050 Maple Valley Highway, Renton   
 
 
 

SUMMARY   
OF THE COUNCIL’S MAJOR AGREEMENTS AT THE MEETING 
REVISED 02.11.15 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attending:  Mayor Margaret Harto, Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner, Council members Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, 
Jim Scott, and Sean Smith; City Manager Regan Bolli; Management Team members Noreen Beaufrere, Richard Hart, Rob 
Hendrickson, Kevin Klason, Sharon Scott, Karla Slate, Scott Thomas, and Don Vondran; and facilitator Jim Reid 
 
Guests:  Mary Pritchard   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MAJOR AGREEMENTS FROM THE SUMMIT  
 
The City Council’s major agreements from its 2015 Summit are: 
 
A. VISION, MISSION AND GOALS:   

 
1. The vision, mission and goal statements were reaffirmed—Council made no changes to them. 

 
2. Until now, the vision, mission and goal statements have been introduced with this banner headline:  “City 

of Covington Vision, Mission and Goals.”  The Council reached consensus that from now on that banner 
should read “City of Covington Growing Toward Greatness.”   

 
B. COUNCIL PRIORITIES FOR 2015-‘16:   
 

The Council agreed on four priorities for 2015-’16: 
 

1. Gain the voters’ approval of the Transportation Benefit District (TBD) in April 2015. 
 

2. Public Safety and Emergency Preparedness 
 

Council members identified two ideas for advancing this priority: 
 

a. Hire at least one more police officer. 
 

b. Host a regional fair or festival focused on community safety to help citizens become more aware of 
public safety issues and take greater responsibility for their neighborhood’s safety.  Council members 
expressed a preference for a regional event; they would like Covington to partner with the cities of 
Maple Valley and Black Diamond to sponsor and organize it.  Each city could take a turn hosting the 
annual safety fair.  The Council also expressed an interest in involving vendors and making the event 
fun.  That may mean holding it at the farmers’ market or in conjunction with another community 
event.    

 

2 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 2 

It was mentioned that this idea is similar to the annual Emergency Preparedness Fair that Maple 
Valley sponsors every year in which Covington participates.  This could be an opportunity to expand 
that program and further promote community awareness in Covington.   

 
Council requested that the staff explore the options for the regional public safety fair.  They also 
said they would like this topic to be on the agenda of the Tri-City meeting of elected officials that will 
be held in Covington this spring.  The Council expects that the inaugural event will be in either 2016 
or ’17.   
 

3. Economic Development  
 

The Council members identified eight potential strategies or actions that the City should consider to 
advance this priority: 

 
a. Invest in the development of Town Center.  The City should be ready to purchase the surplus Kent 

School District property when it becomes available and the City could purchase a portion of property 
from Panattoni.  Staff reported that representatives of Panattoni are prepared to make a 
presentation to Council in the near future.  The Council asked that this presentation be held in the 
next two months in a study session at a local high school or middle school so that students could 
learn, ask questions, and provide perspectives to Council members.  This meeting is intended to be a 
“listening session” for the Council. 

 
b. Work closely with the business community.  More specifically, the Council is interested in 

strengthening the relationship with the Chamber of Commerce, an effort that Mayor Pro Tem 
Wagner and City Manager Regan Bolli have initiated.   

 
c. Improve signage.  Three ideas were suggested:  1) post signs on Highway 18 that say “Covington” at 

exit ramps; 2) put in a “gateway” sign to welcome people to the city; and 3) adopt a symbol, such as 
colorful circle, that could be placed around town or turned into a decal for businesses to fasten to 
their windows.    

 
d. Brand Covington as the “Gateway to the Cascades.”  

 
e. Brand youth sports programs to heighten the city’s identity.  
 
f. Build stronger connections to higher education.  Work with Green River Community College and 

Eastern Washington University to locate a branch campus in Town Center.   
 
g. Address vacant commercial buildings.  Discuss in the future what the City can do to attract more 

businesses to Covington to fill vacant commercial buildings or identify other uses that would fill them.     
 

h. Use art to enhance the City’s identity.  Council members suggested that art could be applied to light 
standards, benches, garbage cans, and other such things to make them fanciful as well as raise the 
City’s identity or profile.    

 
4. Parks and Recreation  

 
Council agreed that the City should establish a citizens’ advisory committee similar to the Budget 
Priorities Advisory Committee (BPAC) that made recommendations to the Council in 2013 about future 
financial issues and strategies.  The purposes of the parks citizens’ group will be to analyze existing 
mechanisms to fund parks and recreation facilities and programs, and recommend strategies and 
mechanisms to provide long-term, stable funding sources for parks and recreation.  Park impact fees and 
the creation of a Metropolitan Parks District (MPD) were mentioned as two potential tools to stabilize 
funding for parks and recreation in the future.   

3 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 3 

 
As the discussion about priorities was drawing to a conclusion, Council members asked staff to prepare a 
timeline for potentially submitting to Covington voters four ballot measures—for police, transportation, 
parks, and Town Center.  This analysis should include potential countywide and School District-sponsored 
ballot measures so that the City Council can factor them into its consideration of if and when the City 
ballot measures would be brought to the voters.   

 
C. POTENTIAL FUTURE FUNDING SOURCES:  
 

After reviewing and discussing eighteen potential sources to fund their priorities, Council members reached 
agreement that two potential funding sources meet the criteria they had established and, therefore, merit 
further analysis and consideration.  The two potential funding sources are:  1) Councilmanic increases to the 
Surface Water Management (SWM), solid waste, and cable television Utility Tax; and 2) the Transportation 
Benefit District (TBD).  As they were giving staff instructions about researching the first option, Council 
members also requested more information about another option, the Business and Occupation (B&O) Tax.     
 
Council members are preparing to submit a TBD proposal to Covington voters in April 2015, so they devoted 
more of their time to an in-depth discussion about the pros and cons of increasing the utility tax. Two other 
options, forming a Metropolitan Parks District (MPD) and imposing park impact fees, are likely to be examined 
by the citizens’ advisory committee that the City will appoint to make recommendations on creating a long-
term, sustainable funding source for parks and recreation facilities and programs.  Council has not taken these 
options off the table but will delegate to the citizens’ committee responsibility to analyze them.  
 
The criteria that the Council used to assess each of the eighteen potential funding sources were:  1) the net 
amount that might be generated (high funding impact); 2) sustainable and predictable over the long-term; 3) 
feasibility; 4) ease or difficulty and cost of implementation (low cost); 4) fairness and equity among income 
levels and between residents and non-residents; and 5) doesn’t substitute local for State funds (must be above 
and beyond).   
 
Raising the utility tax may be the means by which to fund an additional police officer.  Council members also 
heard that the cities of Kent and Renton have worked with their Chambers of Commerce on proposals to 
impose or raise the B&O tax.  As the discussion came to an end, the Council reached consensus that the staff 
should present a proposal that would require mandatory garbage and yard waste collection in Covington 
and increase the cable television utility tax.  In addition, staff will research this question:  “What taxes do 
cities without a B&O tax assess businesses?”      
 
Council members also heard that the voters’ approval of the TBD in April could be another, albeit indirect, 
means of funding a police officer.  With more stable funding for transportation projects, the City would no 
longer need to loan money from the General Fund to the Street Fund.  Ending that practice would free up 
General Funds to help pay for a police officer.  

 
D. BIENNIAL BUDGETING: 
 

The Council agreed to further assess and discuss how the biennial budget process would benefit the City and 
be put into operations.  Staff will bring a proposal to the Council later this year.   
 

E. RELATIONSHIPS THAT ARE VITAL TO SUCCESS: 
 

The Council identified relationships the City depends on to succeed.  Foremost among them in 2015 are the 
relationships with the cities of Maple Valley and Black Diamond, the Kent School District, Eastern Washington 
University, the Chamber of Commerce, King County, and state and federal elected officials.  
 
 

4 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 4 

Maple Valley and Black Diamond 
 
Issues to address with these two cities in 2015 are: 
 

 The public safety and emergency preparedness regional fair or festival. 
 The Interlocal Agreements for building administration, including plan review and building inspections, 

and for public works services. 
 Transportation. 
 The Tri-City Trail. 
 Homelessness and poverty in Southeast King County. 

 
 
Kent School District 
 
Issues to address with the School District in 2015 are: 
 

 The value of the presence of a higher educational institution in the community.  Could the School 
District develop and promote a curriculum that paves the way for a higher education institution in the 
community? 

 Transparency of standards that schools are achieving.  High quality schools will attract businesses and 
well-educated people to Covington, as well as more students, thus expanding the local economy.  The 
City could help promote the schools’ quality and achievements.   

 Access to school facilities, including fields, gyms, and classrooms. 
 How the TBD will benefit students by providing safer transportation, including better roads and more 

sidewalks.   
 A coordinated approach and messaging in working with our State legislators.    

 
Council members expressed an interest in hosting a meeting with the School Board once the district’s new 
Superintendent of Education is hired. 
 
Eastern Washington University (EWU) 
 
The Council will continue building its relationship with EWU to attract a branch campus or some kind of 
presence to Covington.  The City could also help facilitate a closer relationship between the Kent School 
District and EWU to achieve a K-12 through college “continuum of education” in the community.   
Chamber of Commerce 
 
The Council would like the City to have a more visible presence at Chamber-sponsored events, including 
monthly meetings and “after hours” social events.  By getting on the agenda of Chamber meetings and other 
forums, the City could help the business community better understand the wide variety of issues the City is 
tackling and services it provides.  
 
Council members expressed a desire to convene a meeting with the Board of Directors of the Chamber of 
Commerce and Covington Economic Development Council (CEDC) to model the kind of relationship that the 
Council seeks between representatives of the public and private sectors. 
 
The Council also suggested that Karla work with the CEDC to convince the Chamber of Commerce to update 
and reproduce the map of Covington it had once published, and to place the map on the Internet.    
 
King County 
 
Issues to address with the County in 2015 are:  1) animal control; and 2) the Courts.  Regarding the latter, the 
Council is interested in receiving quarterly updates on the costs to the City of Court operations.   A key to 
continuing to build a fruitful relationship with the County is the City’s relationship with King County 

5 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 5 

Councilman Reagan Dunn.  An efficient way to keep working with him is to invite him to the Spring 2015 Tri-
Cities elected officials’ meeting.     
 
State and Federal Elected Officials   
 
The Council is interested in continuing to nurture the relationship with the State legislators who represent the 
City in Olympia, particularly on transportation matters, but also on financial structural issues such as revenues 
from the sales of liquor and marijuana that flow to local governments.  The Council is also interested in 
strengthening the City’s relationships with United States Senators Murray and Cantwell and Congressman 
Reichert.   
 
Other Important Relationships 
 
Other important relationships that must be nurtured include those with developers and commercial brokers, 
the Covington Water District, the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT), the Regional Fire 
Authority, Forterra, the King Conservation District, and neighborhood councils and homeowners’ associations 
(HOAs).   
 
Council members specifically mentioned meeting this year with: 
 

 The new manager of the Covington Water District.  
 The Chief and captains of the Regional Fire Authority to learn how the City fits into their vision of 

their organization’s mission, roles and responsibilities. 
 Commercial brokers and developers at the annual roundtable sponsored by the King County Master 

Builders Association.   
 
By working with neighborhood councils and HOAs, the City intends to make the community safer and help 
direct citizens to opportunities to obtain King Conservation District funds that could strengthen their 
organizations.  By monitoring the work of the King County Joint Recommendations Committee, the City could 
obtain CDBG funds to improve infrastructure and housing for low-income residents.  Finally, the City expects 
that its citizens will take responsibility for fostering Sister City relationships.    
 

F. KEY MESSAGES FROM THE CITY TO THE COMMUNITY:    
 

Following the discussion about priorities for 2015 and ’16, the Council discussed the key messages that should 
be communicated to the public about the City’s priorities and what it will take to implement them.   
 
Regarding the TBD ballot measure, the Council agreed that messages to the public should incorporate these 
key interests of the public: 1) safety; 2) mobility; 3) efficiency and timeliness; and 4) economic growth and 
prosperity.  These interests are also at stake in finding long-term, stable funding sources.  An important 
additional interest of the Council’s is fiscal responsibility.  
 
The public should understand that the City can no longer maintain such high service levels because of State 
budget cuts and unfunded State mandates.  If Covington is to continue to provide the high levels of service 
that they have come to expect, the citizens will need to pay for them.         
 
The City can lay the groundwork for this message.  For example, the City can communicate to the public the 
popularity and importance of youth sports programs, and how much they cost.   Celebrating their role in the 
lives of kids and families will raise the visibility of these programs.  The City could also distribute “I Love Youth 
Sports” decals or buttons to attract broader support from citizens and the business community.  By helping 
the community better understand the role of youth sports programs in the fabric of community life and the 
costs of operating them, the City can help lay the groundwork for a potential future ballot measure to fund 
parks and recreation.   

6 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 6 

 
Council members’ presence at community events could also be valuable in raising the City’s profile and 
communicating what the City is doing and the benefits of its programs.  Council member Sean Smith 
volunteered to attend HOA meetings, and other Council members said they would attend parks, recreational 
and sporting events.  PTA meetings might be another avenue for reaching out to school administrators and 
teachers and to parents.  And the National Night Out may be another event for communicating the City’s 
messages.     
 
Finally, some Council members suggested that a strategic communications plan would allow the City to build 
public awareness of and support for the direction it is going and its services and programs.  An element of that 
plan should be a coordinated approach for public outreach by the Council members.    

 
G. AN UPDATE ON THE STATUS OF THE YOUTH ATHLETICS PROGRAM  
 

With the assistance of parks and recreation director Scott Thomas, the Council assessed the status of the 
youth athletics program nearly a year after the City assumed management responsibility for it from Covington 
Community Sports.  Since taking control of the program in 2014, the City has:  1) added a customer service 
staff person plus an athletics specialist; 2) recruited coaches and officials; 3) and offered fall soccer, volleyball, 
basketball, and flag football, which is moving to summertime in 2015. 
 
The financial “footing” of the program looks solid.  The number of kids who participated in the program was 
down a little from when Covington Sports managed it, but the number is increasing.  Staff expects even more 
young people to participate in 2015.  One strategy being employed to sustain the program is to attract 6-8 
year olds because they would become long-time customers, and, hopefully, influence their younger siblings to 
participate. 
 
Council members suggested that one vehicle for marketing the program is the Chamber of Commerce’s 
newsletter.  And one member proposed that businesses be given the opportunity to sponsor teams.  They 
could print their business’ name on the team jerseys to promote themselves.   
 
Council requested that Scott refine the estimate for 2015 costs and revenues based on the actual experience 
of 2014.     

 
MOST SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF 2014 
 
As in past years, the Council cited the most important accomplishments of the previous year.  By doing so, Council 
members provided the context and foundation for their goals and priorities during 2015-‘16.  The biggest 
accomplishments of 2014 were: 
 
1. Hiring a qualified new City Manager and the process by which he was hired.  Also, the confidence the Council 

exhibited as it advanced the process. 
2. The transition from Derek Matheson to Rob Hendrickson as Interim City Manager to Regan Bolli as the new 

City Manager. 
3. Staff’s orientation session for Regan and new City Council member Sean Smith.   
4. Public-private partnerships to advance the Council’s vision for Town Center. 
5. The relationship the City established with Eastern Washington University (EWU). 
6. The City took Covington Days to a new level of success. 
7. The seamless transition of the Youth Sports Program to City management. 
8. The Police Department’s School Resource Officer is in place in the schools.   
9. City of Covington branding. 
10. The graffiti problem is declining. 
11.  Bond rating increased. 

7 of 47



Unapproved Draft – January 31, 2015 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

 7 

12. Opportunities for citizens to interact with staff, including the public’s influence of City thinking and decisions 
regarding the Jenkins Creek Bridge and the Hawk property. 

13. Partnership with Oakpointe (Yarrow Bay). 
14. The City’s growing economy. 
15. Implementing the use of credit cards for citizens to pay bills and for services. 
16. The exit interviews of staff and Commission members yielded helpful information and garnered goodwill. 
17. The art installation outside the pool. 
18. The City stood its ground in working on the affordable housing component of the mixed-use project for the 

Inland Group in Town Center.  
19. Governor Inslee attended the hospital ribbon-cutting ceremony, which gave him the opportunity to learn 

more about the community.  His visit has had a positive ripple affect.  
20. The City increased its support of human services. 
21. The Interlocal agreement between Covington, Maple Valley, and Black Diamond. 
22. No personal agendas.  Everyone puts the interests and needs of the City first.   
23. The effectiveness of the City’s Code Enforcement Program with three very high profile cases that resulted in 

protecting neighborhoods and environmental quality.   
 
After citing the accomplishments of 2014, individual Council members mentioned these issues where more 
progress is needed: 
 
1. The loss by thirty-nine votes of the TBD ballot measure.  We need to convince an even greater majority of the 

electorate of the value of the proposal.    
2. In light of that loss at the polls, the City didn’t enact a car tab proposal so there is still not a stable, long-term 

funding source for transportation projects. 
3. We still need one or two more police officers. 
4. We should attract a theatre to Town Center. 
5. We need to locate a permanent home for Covington Days. 
6. Work to get citizens more involved in the protection of their neighborhoods. 
7. Need to more effectively relate the City’s transportation goals to economic development opportunities so that 

citizens understand our economic expansion depends on an efficient transportation system. 
 
FUTURE ISSUES ON THE CITY’S HORIZON  
 
Here are issues the Council members cited at the end of the summit that are likely to be on the Council’s agenda at 
some point in the future: 
 
1. The status of revenue streams if some or any of the 13-17 initiatives that Tim Eyman is proposing pass. 
2. Failure of the State Legislature to pass a transportation package. 
3. The impact on the City of the work slowdowns at the Port of Seattle. 
4. A public safety strategic plan. 
5. Train traffic though Covington, including transport by rail of any toxic or hazardous materials. 
6. Create a well-managed volunteer program that is run by a designated Volunteer Coordinator. 
7. Recommendations for the parks citizens’ advisory committee on additional revenue sources for parks and 

recreation facilities and programs. 
8. Town Center and the Hawk property. 
9. Banners. 
10. At uncontrolled crosswalks (i.e., Roundabouts), have flashing beacons that can be activated by pedestrians 

when needing to cross the street. 
11. Bring “3 on 3” basketball tournaments/jamborees to Covington.   

  

8 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 10, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
INTERVIEWS– 6:40-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Covington Parks & Recreation 
Commission and Planning Commission.  Applicants interviewed included Kathy Fosjord and 
Lisa Knapton. 
  
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
February 10, 2015, at 7:07 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; Ann Mueller, Senior Planner; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Colin Lund with Oakpointe provided an update on the Hawk property project. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Lund provided responses. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  January 27, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

9 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

2 
 

C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32018-32083, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 
Transfers and VOID Vouchers #32014-32017, in the Amount of $415,863.72, Dated 
January 23, 2015; Vouchers #32084-32084, in the Amount of $150.00, Dated January 29, 
2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003348365-1003348379 inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $167,138.59, Dated January 30, 2015. 
 

C-3. Ratify Valley Medical Statutory Warranty Deed. 
 

C-4. Amendment to Contract for Aquatic Re-roofing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 01-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 7-02 AND COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
2.50.080 REGARDING THE REGIONAL DISASTER PLAN; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 
REGIONAL COORDINATION FRAMEWORK FOR DISASTERS 
AND PLANNED EVENTS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT REGARDING THE SAME 

 
C-5. Ordinance Repealing Regional Disaster Plan and Resolution Adopting Regional 

Coordination Framework for Disasters and Planned Events. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Smith seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Comments and Consider Ordinance Extending the Moratorium on Medical 
Marijuana Production and Processing Facilities, Dispensaries, and Collective Gardens for Six 
Months. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart and City Attorney Sara Springer gave the staff 
report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 

10 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 02-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, TO EXTEND THE 
MORATORIUM ON THE ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, 
OPERATION, LICENSING, MAINTENANCE, OR 
CONTINUATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, 
PRODUCTION FACILITIES, PROCESSING FACILITIES, 
COLLECTIVE GARDENS, AND RELATED BUSINESSES 
WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON FOR SIX MONTHS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
MORATORIUM; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT SUPPORTING 
THE MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE NOs. 08-11, 
12-12, 01-13, 07-13, 05-14, and 10-14; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY. 

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 02-15 to extend the moratorium on medical marijuana collective 
gardens, production and processing facilities, dispensaries, and related businesses for an 
additional six-months.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Receive Comments Regarding City Council’s Consideration of a Resolution in Support of 
Covington Transportation Benefit District Proposition No. 1 on the April 28, 2015 Special 
Election Ballot.   
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington. Spoke against a ballot measure. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, SUPPORTING 
COVINGTON TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION NO. 1 WHICH, IF APPROVED, WOULD 
AUTHORIZE A SALES AND USE TAX FOR TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENTS. 

 

11 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

4 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded 
to pass Resolution No. 15-02 in support of Covington Transportation Benefit District 
Proposition No. 1 in substantial form to the resolution provided in the Agenda Packet.  
Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
3.  Consider Appointments to Arts, Parks & Recreation, and Planning Commissions. 
 
Council Action: 
 
Arts Commission:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
appoint Jennifer Harjehausen to fill Position No. 4 (scrivener’s/clerical error listed this as a 
duplicate Position No. 1 in the Agenda Packet) on the Arts Commission with a term 
expiring May 31, 2017.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission: 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to appoint 
Zbigniew Tomalik to fill Position No. 1 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a 
term expiring January 31, 2017.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried.  
 
Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded to appoint 
Bryan Higgins to fill Position No. 3 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a term 
expiring January 31, 2018.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried.  
 
Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Smith seconded to appoint Lisa 
Knapton to fill Position No. 4 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a term 
expiring January 31, 2018.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried.  

 
Planning Commission:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Smith seconded 
to appoint Krista Bates to fill a position on the Planning Commission with a term expiring 
August 31, 2017.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon provided an update to Council on the affordable housing issues and 
asked Council’s support of her Sound Cities Association vote in favor of allowing King County 
to bond against future income and build affordable housing now.  Councilmembers asked some 
questions, and Councilmember Mhoon responded she would ask those questions at her meeting 
the following night and provide those answers via email. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

12 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 24, 2015 
 

5 
 

Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington, thanked Council for a wonderful Annual 
Strategic Planning Summit on Saturday, January 31, and requested a copy of the summary of the 
meeting when it is ready.  Mrs. Pritchard also thanked the Council for passing the resolution in 
support of the Transportation Benefit District’s Proposition No. 1.   
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

13 of 47



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32085-32187, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 
Transfers and VOID Vouchers #32105-32105, in the Amount of $196,110.56, Dated February 
6, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003395883-1003395898 inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $164,755.46, Dated February 13, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32085-32187, including ACH 
Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers and VOID Vouchers #32105-
32105, in the Amount of $196,110.56, Dated February 6, 2015; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003395883-1003395898 inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $164,755.46, Dated February 
13, 2015. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

14 of 47



15 of 47



16 of 47



17 of 47



18 of 47



19 of 47



20 of 47



21 of 47



22 of 47



23 of 47



24 of 47



25 of 47



26 of 47



27 of 47



28 of 47



29 of 47



30 of 47



 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: February 24, 2015 
 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE PAYMENT OF SALES TAX ASSESSMENT ON COVINGTON 

COMMUNITY PARK PROJECT, CONSTRUCTED BY GOODFELLOW BROS., 
INC., FROM 2014 BUDGET  

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Department of Revenue Invoice 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
On December 4, 2014, the Washington State Department of Revenue (DOR) assessed $101,419 
in sales tax ($99,502) and interest ($1,917) on the Covington Community Park project, which 
was constructed by Goodfellow Bros., Inc. (Attachment 1) This anticipated expenditure was 
approved by council and included in the 2015 budget but, due to the assessment date, the 
expenditure was required to be paid out of the 2014 budget. Accordingly, our 2014 financial 
statements will show a prior period adjustment for this payment since this project was completed 
and accepted in 2013. 
 
Staff has reviewed the 2014 budget and we are within our budget authority to make this 
payment. However, because of the accounting changes associated with this budget expenditure 
between 2014 and 2015, staff is seeking explicit approval from the council for the payment of 
this expense from the 2014 budget, and prior period adjustment in 2014 financial statements, to 
create a clear record of council budget authority for the payment.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

 None  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The General Fund will transfer $101,419 to the Capital Investment Program Fund to pay the 
invoice in 2014.  The 2015 budget allowed for a transfer of $100,000. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____Ordinance          Resolution      X    Motion         Other 
 
 

Council member    moves, Council member      
seconds, to approve a transfer of $101,419 from the General Fund to the 
Capital investment Program Fund for payment to DOR for sales taxes owed 
on the Covington Community Park project; staff to pay said amount to DOR 
in 2014; and staff to make a prior period adjustment to the 2014 financial 
statements for said payment. 

31 of 47



ATTACHMENT 1

32 of 47



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: February 24, 2015 
 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH SBS 

LEGAL SERVICES, PLLC FOR 2015 CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed contract for City Attorney Services. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The city contracts with SBS Legal Services, PLLC, for City Attorney services.  The current 
contract expires on March 10, 2015.  The attached proposed contract reflects an increase in her 
hourly rate from $145 to $150. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not approve the contract and provide direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance             Resolution      X    Motion               Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ seconds 
to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with SBS Legal Services, 
PLLC for 2015 City Attorney services. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

33 of 47



Page 1 of 3 
 

Contract No. __________ 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 24th day of February, 2015 (“Effective Date”), by and between the 
City of Covington, Washington, a Washington municipal corporation (the “City"), and SBS Legal Services, PLLC, 
(the “Contractor”), a Washington professional limited liability corporation. The City and the Contractor are 
collectively referred to in this Agreement as the “Parties”. 

 WHEREAS, the City is in need of certain services performed for its citizens but does not have the 
manpower or expertise to perform such services; and  

 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Contractor perform such services pursuant to certain terms and 
conditions; now, therefore,  

 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

1. Scope and Schedule of Services.   

1.1. Scope. The Contractor shall provide City Attorney services to the City and Sara B. Springer, a 
member attorney of the Contractor, shall serve as the City Attorney, providing the traditional scope of 
attorney services. The Contractor shall also be responsible for providing an equally qualified coverage 
attorney, when necessary. In performing such services, the Contractor shall at all times faithfully, and to 
the best of its ability and experience, perform all of the duties that are required of it pursuant to the 
express terms of this Agreement, the rules of professional responsibility, and the direction of city 
management.  

1.2. Base Monthly Hours. The Contractor shall provide up to 45 hours per month of city attorney 
services for the City (“Base Hours”). Any city attorney services required that will cause the Contractor to 
exceed the Base Hours in any given month shall be agreed upon and approved by all Parties.  

2. Compensation and Method of Payment.   

2.1. Compensation.  The City shall pay the Contractor for services rendered on a time and expenses 
basis based upon the Contractor’s rate of one hundred and fifty dollar per hour ($150.00/hr). The 
Contractor shall not amend the rate in any way without prior written approval from the City. The 
Contractor shall bill its time in tenth (1/10) of the hour increments. Any legal services provided by a 
coverage attorney shall be included within the above compensation provisions.  

2.2. Travel. The Contractor shall not bill nor be entitled to payment for travel time to and from the 
City. Any other travel by the Contractor on behalf of the City shall be billed at fifty percent (50%) of the 
regular hourly rate of the Contractor.  

2.3. Miscellaneous Expenses. The Contractor shall not bill nor be entitled to payment for telephone, 
photocopy, fax, and mileage expenses incurred in the performance of its duties; provided, however, that 
the City shall make a reasonable accommodation to reimburse the Contractor for unusual photocopy and 
fax costs, if any, that may arise in the course of litigation to which the City is a party or other 
extraordinary projects. In all events, the City shall reimburse the Contractor for legal messenger service 
expenses, court filing fees, transcripts, and other similar expenses advanced on the City’s behalf.  

2.4. Payment. The Contractor shall submit monthly payment invoices to the City after such services 
have been performed. The City shall pay the full amount of the invoice within thirty (30) days of receipt, 
unless there is a dispute. In the event of a dispute, the City shall pay any amount not in dispute and the 
Parties shall meet to resolve any differences. If the Parties are unable to resolve any such differences, the 
Parties shall submit the disputed amount to the Fee Arbitration Board of the State of Washington Bar 
Association for arbitration and prompt resolution. The Parties agree to be bound by the results of such 
arbitration. In the event of non-payment following arbitration, the City shall pay the Contractor the costs 
of collecting the debt, including court costs and fees, and reasonable attorneys fees. 

3. Term.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from the Effective Date through and until February 
24, 2016, unless sooner terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified. 

4. Independent Contractor.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall utilize only 
attorneys licensed by the State of Washington and in good standing with the Washington State Bar 

ATTACHMENT 1

34 of 47



Page 2 of 3 
 

Association. The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is an independent contractor with respect 
to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create 
the relationship of employer and employee between the parties hereto. Neither the Contractor nor any 
employee of the Contractor shall be entitled to any benefits accorded City employees by virtue of the services 
provided under this Agreement. The City shall not be responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting 
federal income tax or social security or contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or otherwise 
assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the Contractor, or any employee of the Contractor. The 
Parties acknowledge that the Contractor will provide work and services for other clients in its independent law 
practice. The Contractor agrees not to perform such services for other clients where a conflict of interest or 
ethical violation as defined in the Rules of Professional Conduct for attorneys exists. 

5. Indemnification.  The Contractor releases and shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from any and all claims, demands, losses, actions 
and liabilities (including costs and all attorney’s fees) arising from the negligent and intentionally wrongful acts 
or omissions of the Contractor in the performance of legal services under this Agreement, or by the 
Contractor’s breach of this Agreement. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, this 
indemnification provision shall apply. However, this shall not require the Contractor to indemnify the City 
against any liability for damages arising out of bodily injury, property damages, or any losses caused by or 
resulting from negligence of the City. Further, the City shall protect, defend, and indemnify and save harmless 
the Contractor, its attorneys and other employees, from all costs, claims, judgments, or damages arising out of 
the negligent acts or omissions of the City, its officers, employees, or volunteers or due to the City’s breach of 
this Agreement. To the extent any of the damages referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted 
from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents, or employees, the Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the City is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the 
Contractor, its officers, agents, and employees.  

6. Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain in full force throughout the duration of this 
Agreement professional liability insurance including Errors and Omissions as appropriate to the services 
performed and shall be written on a claims made form basis with limits of in no case less than $500,000.00 
per occurrence.  Cancellation of the required insurance shall automatically result in termination of this 
Agreement.  

7. Record Keeping and Reporting. The Contractor shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 
property, financial, and programmatic records which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect 
costs of any nature expended and services performed in the performance of this Agreement and other such 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement. These records 
shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination hereof unless permission to destroy them 
is granted by the office of the archivist in accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14 and by the City.  

8. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause by providing a 
ninety-day (90) day written notice of termination to the other party. The Contractor shall be entitled to 
payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of 
termination.  

9. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for 
employment, or any person seeking the services of the Contractor to be provided under this Agreement on 
the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or presence of any sensory, 
mental or physical handicap. 

10. Assignment and Subcontract.  Neither the Contractor nor the City shall have the right to transfer or 
assign, in whole or in part, any or all of its obligations and rights hereunder without the prior written consent 
of the other party.  

11. Entire Agreement /Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations 
other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, 
negotiations, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the Parties hereto concerning 
the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all Parties hereto.   

35 of 47



Page 3 of 3 
 

12. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of either Party to declare any breach or default immediately upon 
occurrence shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of either Party to declare one breach or default 
does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach or default. 

13. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity 
or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof 
and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a 
part of this Agreement.  

14. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been duly given if emailed, personally delivered, or mailed, by first class or certified mail, with 
postage prepaid to the relevant address included in the signature block below, or to such other person or 
place as one party shall furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon 
receipt of email or personal delivery or, if mailed, upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days 
after the date of mailing. 

15. Governing Law / Venue / Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King 
County, Washington. In the event of any default under this Agreement, the substantially defaulting party 
agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason 
thereof, including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of 
such default or the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in 
legal proceedings, or otherwise. The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all 
litigation, arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy, and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 

16. Authority / Counterparts.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the 
Contractor represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this 
Agreement on behalf of the Contractor or the City. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts and as executed shall constitute one Agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all 
Parties are not signatory to the same counterpart. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the above Effective Date. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONTRACTOR—SBS Legal Services, PLLC 
 
 
   ______________________________________ 
By: Regan Bolli  By: Sara Springer 
Title:  City Manager  Title: Owner/Attorney  
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100  1308 29th Ave. S 
Covington, WA 98042  Seattle, WA  98144 
Email: rbolli@covingtonwa.gov            Email: sara@sbslegalservices.com 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
   
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Date approved by City Council: February 10, 2015  
(If Applicable) 

36 of 47



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  February 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE TASK NUMBER 006 

WITH GRAY & OSBORNE TO DESIGN THE CLEMENTS / SE 263rd PLACE 
STORMWATER CONVEYANCE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1.  Gray & Osborne Task Number 006 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ben Parrish, SWM Program Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Staff requests council authorization for the city manager to execute Task Number 006 with Gray 
& Osborne.  This task order is for design and easement acquisition services for the Clements/SE 
263rd Place Stormwater Conveyance Improvement Project, which was identified as a project to 
be completed in 2015 as a part of the Surface Water Management (SWM) rate study.  This 
project will replace an undersized and failing private conveyance system that connects several 
stormwater outfalls north of SE 263rd Place to the system on 159th Avenue SE.  The new 
conveyance system will be installed in the appropriate easement and provide increased capacity.  
The $247,200 total project cost was included in the 2015 budget and by utilizing two grant 
opportunities, 80% of the total project cost will be reimbursed with the remainder covered by the 
city’s SWM CIP funds.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The project has been approved to utilize the city’s 2013 and 2014 allocations ($44,686) from the 
King County Flood Control District Sub-Regional Opportunity Fund for design.  In addition, the 
project was awarded $176,000 from a King County Flood Control District Flood Reduction Fund 
Grant to fully fund construction. The remaining balance of $26,837 will be covered by SWM 
CIP funds to primarily cover the easement acquisition costs. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ____________moves, Councilmember ____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Task Number 006 with 
Gray & Osborne to design the Clements/SE 263rd Place Stormwater 
Conveyance Improvement Project. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

37 of 47



ATTACHMENT 1

38 of 47



39 of 47



40 of 47



41 of 47



42 of 47



43 of 47



44 of 47



45 of 47



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  February 24, 2015 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, March 10, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46 of 47



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, March 10, 2015                                                                                                    City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  

• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn 
• Youth Art Month Proclamation – March 2015 (Lesli Cohan & Leslie Spero) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 24, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Comments and Consider Ordinance Extending Interim Zoning Regulations Regarding 

Recreational Marijuana (Springer) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Revisions to Contracts and Purchasing Policies (Springer) 
3. Approve City Manager Merit Goals for 2015 (Bolli) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 2/19/2015 

 

47 of 47

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	02-24-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, February 24, 2015                                                                                                City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - None

	Consent Item 1 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item 1 Attachment 1 01-31-15 Strategic Planning Summit Final Summary
	Consent Item 1 Attachment 2 02.10.2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item 2 Green Sheet 02-24-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item 2 Attachments
	Consent Item 3 Green Sheet DOR Sales Tax Assessment
	Consent Item 3 Attachment 1
	Consent Item 4 Green Sheet 02-24-15 Blue sheet legal services
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent Item 4 Attachment 1 DRAFT_SBS Contract_2015
	Consent Item 5 Green Sheet 02-24-15 Clements Drainage G&O Task Number 006
	Consent Item 5 Attachment 1 G & O Task No. 006
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	03-10-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, March 10, 2015                                                                                                    City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




